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Wimborne, Nov. 1911.

¢ Qur expert friends tell us
that we have a grand °ring,’ of
which the town of Wimborne
may well be proud. ,
The old bells were so badly out
of tune one with another, that it
is a great pleasure to hear a peal
of ten so perfectly in tune as ours
now are on the Canon Simpson
Principle.”
We are, dear Sirs,
Yours faithtully,

Jas. M. J. FLETCHER, Vicar,

Frank BLoUNT,)
Tom GOMER, } Churchwardens,

ESTABLISHED 1820

CHURCH

BELL ROPE,
(LOCK AND CHIMING ROPE

Manufacturer,

LOUGHBOROUGH.

J. P. has had many years' experience
in making Bellrapes, and makes them
only of the best quality. .

HAVE MADE

BELL ROPES

Since the Reign of George 111,

For Estimates send weight of Tenor, and
nnmber and length of Ropes required to

JOHN ASTLEY & SONS, Ltd
Rope Makers, COVENTRY.

ILK WRAPS, HANDKERCHIEFS,
and other Goods of original design.
Beautiful Silk Peal Records, very attrac.

tive. W, MarTHEWS, Change-Ringer,
| Bond|Street, Maccleefisld,

Jobn Astley and Sons, Itd. |

PRINTING! PRINTING !

GEO. CARTER

(The Printer of this Journal) is prepared
to execute Orders for all kinds of N

GENERAL & COMMERCIAL

PRINTING

At Reasonable Prices, consisten* with good
workmanship.

No Order too small and none too large.

RINGING ASSOCIATIONS

May depend on any Orders entrusted to

him receiving prompt attention.

BELLRINGERS

Requiring Printing of any kind will receive
the same attention,

Send along your Trial Orders, and give
him an opportunity to prove his words.

'PEAL CARDS.

Bands or Individual Ringers who desire
to keep a record of their peals may haws
them neatly printed on plain or fancy
bordered Cards. Specimens will be setf
on application.

“BELL NEWS” WORKS,
~ 1, SELBORNE ROAD,
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LLEWELLINS & ) LTD. CASTLE GREEN, BRISTOL.

Church Bells

Singly & in Rings,

Bells rec;;t to Note
and Rehunyg.

INSCRIPTIONS
FAITHFULLY

REPRODUCED.

LLEWELLINGS & JAMES U°

BRISTOL.

or OAK.

HARRINGTON'S

PATENT

‘Tubular Bells

FOR CHURCHES.

rubular Bells are bettér and oheaper
than the eold form eof Bell

PEALS OF EIGHT BELLS—
Usual Size .. s - o0 5160
Large d0. © e se oo £310 to £260

Por Testimenials and Prospectus apply to

Harrington, Latham & Co.,

EARLSDON, COVENTRY.

 HENRY BOND

(Batablished Half-a-Century.)

Bell Founder

CHURCH BELL HARNGER
BURFORD, OXON.

JOHN SUI-I-Y,

churel? Bell Hangenr
Zinoh, Stogumber, Somerset.

Rlnﬁl of Bells to any number hung on the most approved
nciples. OQld Bells ro-cut ew Bells supplied,

] S hlﬂlll had unlldenble expetience in Chnroh
, with confidence soliolts the patronage of
the elergy, Cl and ringers generally
THE BLLACOMBE CHIME HAMMBRS FIXE
BELI.. ROPES SUPPLIED. b

ALFRED BOWELL,
CHURCH BELL FUUNDEH

IPSWICH.

WEBB & BENNETT,
Church Bell Hangers & Tuners,

Mikl STREET,
K‘IDLIJVGTO.N O.X'FORD

W. and B. are prac: |cal rirgers, and havmg
bad considerable experieoce m Church Bel
Hanging and Tuning with confidence solicit
the patronage of Clergy, Churchwardens and
Ringers generally

W. and B.'s Wronght Jron X Frames for
Church Bells are acknowledged to be one of
the best kings.

Towers inspected, Reports and Estimates
given. Ellacombe Chime Fammers fixed.
Bell Ropes supplied.

W. and B, hung the Bells upon which the
longest peal of Doanble Norwich, 17,024 changes,
was rang at Kidlington, by eight members of
the Oxford Diocesan Guild, on May 22nd,
1899  Actual weight of tenor 233 cwt.

J. F. MALLABY & CO.
Chureh Bell Hangers & Musical
Handbell Founders,

BARNBY DON, DONCASTER

CHURCH BELLS hung with every des-
cription of the Iatest approved fittings,in

0AK OR STEEL FRAMES,

HANDBELLS, of sxoellant tone, made to
diatenio and chrsmatic scales, in sets
any number and ts any sise,

FREDERICK WHITE,
Chwrch Bell Hanaér
Appz.lrou, BER <8,

BELL ROPES.
BELL ROPES.

THE VERY BEST
Are made by Messrs,

WM. SMITH & SON,

(Established 1768.)
GOMERSAL, LEEDS,

Our Ropes are the First Favourites of the
Exercise.

Ringors ars invited to try Yorkshire
Ropes with Yorkshire End-Pieces,

COFFIN WEBS
Of either Cotion, Flaz, or Hemp

THOMAS DOBLE & SON,
Chwrch Bell Hangers,

11 CANON STREET
TAUNTON, SOMHERSHT.

Bells hung with fittings of the most ap-
proved grmcxple 0l4d Bells recast, new Bells
supplied, Ropes of the best make, The Ella-
combe Chime Hammers fixed. Towers in-
spected, and estimates foroished.

. T, D. & Son are change»—rmgers, and havin,
had many years' experience in Charch Bel
Hanging, with confidence solicits the patron-
age of the Clergy, Chorchwardens. and ringers
generally

MUFFLERS.

Clapper-Mufflers made of Best
Materials by experienced Ringers.

Firm of over Thirty Years’ standing.
Have supplied Mufflers for peals of
all weights and pumbers, Also

L.eather Rope Protectcrs.

WAKLEY,
166, Waterloo Street, Burton-on-Trent.
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THE OXFORD DIOCESAN GUILD.
ANNUAL FEsTivaL aT OXFORD.

Oxford was visited on Saturday, July 13th, by a large
nnmber of bellringers, and all the afternoon from the
principal towers and steeples sweet carillons were carried
over the city. It was the festival of the Oxford Diocesan
Guild, and for the third time during the somewhat lengthy
existence of the Guild, the annual fixture was held at
Oxford. Everything went well, and it was one of the
most successful festivals on record. Rain fell heavily
during some periods of the day, but happily it cleared up
by the time the indoor festivities had concluded. Some
500 members of the Guild came to Oxford, and they
arrived from all parts of the diocese. As is customary,
the day's proceedings were prefaced by a service, which
was held at the Cathedral at 11.30. The feature of this
was the striking address of the Bishop of Oxford. The
businees meéting was then held, and the festival dinner
in Christ Church Hall followed. Itis interesting to note
that all parts of the diocese were represented by the
gathering.

THE SERVICE. :

The Rev. R. M. Reeves conducted the service at Christ
Church Cathedral, in conjunction with the Archdeacon of
Oxford. It commenced very appropriately with a hymn,
« Unchanging God,” specially composed by the Rev. H.
C. Wilder, M.A., of Sulham, set to the familiar tune of the
Church bells. The Master of the Guild (Rev. Cyril W.
O. Jenkyn), of Caversham, recd the lesson. After the
Bidding Prayer had been rendered from the pulpit, the
Bishop delivered his sermon.

BELL-RINGERS AMONGST THE €HURCH WORKERS.

Taking as his text ** I will sing with the spirit, and I will sing
with the understanding also’’ (I Corinthians xiv., 15), he re-
marked that first of all he wished to be allowed to say that he
was not able to resist the invitationjthat was given him to come
and speak to that gathering of bell-ringers, and the representa.
tives of many other bell-ringers of their diocese. It bad been,
and it remained still, a question of his that those who held that
office and exercised that art of bell.-ringing in the old towers of
their churches should be regarded by everyone, and should regard
themselves, as properly and truly among the Church workers of
the diocese, They knew that we were feeling it increasingly now
that the Church and the ministry of the Church did not belong
only to the clergy. The clergy had their special ministry, which
they were bound jealously to guard, and that was the ministry of
the Word and Sacrament. But that, as St. Paul tanght them,
was only one of the great many ministries which belonged to the
body of Christ—ministries that had to deal with healing, with
finance, and with, as they all knew very well, the musical render-
ing of the praises of God. Amongst those many ministriss of
healing and teaching, of singing and playing, of financial admin-
istration, and others—amongst those many ministries ii was his
most earnest desire that their holy, venerable, and traditional art
should be regarded as one of the ministrles of the Church, and
amongst those many ministries which made for the glory of God
and for the good of His people. Thc speaker heartily welcomed

them to the Cathedral, and would do all that layin his power to

bring it about that they and all those whao exercised. that tradi-
tional art of theirs should regard themselves and be regarded as .
properly amongst the Church workers of the diocese.

THE SIGHTS AND SOUNDS OF ENGLAND,
He spoke just now about their exercising their tradftional art,

and he would like them to feel, if indeed it was necessary that-

he should say a word in that direction—he wonld like them to
feel what a very characteristic place in life of England their art
bad held, and, pleasz God, would hold. They did not feel it so
long as they simply lived in their own conntry, but every man

when he went abroad, and every Englishman when he emigrated

to Canada, every Englishman who ever travelled in other coun-
tries for any length of time. began to feel that he was missing
something, that there were certain characteristic sights and
sounds of England that he was missing, Among these he would
be disposed to put almost first amongst the sights the green fields
of England. Side by side with that memory of the green fields
there was the memory of what lay in the heart of that greenness,
that was the old village churches, As for their great town
churches and cathedrals, they might go to many countries and
find their rivals, their equals, and perhaps their superiors. Bat
he did not believe there was any country in the world which
could compare to England for its village churches. He did not
think there was any sight, anything which appealed to the sight,
which was so characteristic ot our couatry.

NO SOUND LIKE THE ENGLISH CHURCH BELLS.

Then when they passed from the sights to the sounds, he woald
put among the most characteristic sounds of England the sound
of our church bells, rnng in the traditional, and, as far as he
knew, unique English manner, with its venerable and traditional
art, handed down from generation to generation, So they would
note those most characteristic sights and sounds of England
hung togerher, and they saw them and heard them together
round about our village churches, standing amid green fields.
The songs of birds and the ringing of the bells were the most
characteristic sounds of England, and there was no other place
where you could hear them like it. Other countries had their
bells; but English bell-ringing was totally distinct and unique,
and to a degree, at which hardly any other could rival, charac.
teristic of England and our Engiish scenery. He would like to
congratulate them because of the great. and marked improve-
ments which everyone wonld récognise had taken place in the
belfries of England. He daredsay they would remember how in
Dickens’s novels they got a glimpse of what was thought about
the belfries and the canduct of the men in the beifries fifty to
eighty years ago. - The belfries. were associated with very un.
creditable scenes, with drunkenness, and with everything most
unspiritual and irreligious. That had all been changed. No one
now would associate that with our belfrfes; the conduct in the
belfries, the conduct of our ringers had over the whole area of
our country been improved, so that that sort of language would
be no more applicable to-day than similar language which
Dickens used about the profession of nurses would, and the
scenes which Dickens described no truer to-day than those would
be which he described when he was talking .about those who
were the nurses of the sick., There had undoubtedly been a
great improvement, We hear a good deal of gloomy things
about the prospect of our country, but he thought we did well
on that point to thank God for what had been given us in the
way of marked and indisputable improvements. Among the
elements, the signs of marked and indisputable improvements
in our country, he was entitled to rank improvements in the cog-
duct of our belfries and of those who rang our bells, and for
that he thanked many who had laboured for that end and aim.
He prayed them all to maintain all that was best in the tradi-
tions of good conduct and reverent bebaviour in the beliries,
which were part of our consecrated buildings, and, as he had
said, held so great a place in the gonsecrated memories of our

4 couatry, .

~
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AN INJUNCTION TO RETREATING RINGERS,

He fancied there was a great deal of improvement.to be made
in the occupation of the bell-ringer—that was to make it an
occupation Into which the mfnds and wills of men were brought.
. He would fut it in this way, They would realise that it was

by their holy and traditional art that people were summoned to
worship. hey who rang the bells which scattered that
summons over the surface of the countryside—well, they must
be worehippers themselves. That was what St. Paul meant
when he said they must sing with the understanding also. They
must feel that it was not proper or seemly or commendable that
they should be ringing people to worship if they were not
worshippers themselves. They would realise how unpleasant it
was when the beautiful peal was over and the congregation had
gathered for worship, to hear the stamping upon the beifry
stairs, and then, perhaps, the trooping out of the whole body of
. ringers—out, it may be, from the church, without taking part in
. the worship themselves. He would ask everyone of them to feel
- that they could not fulfil St. Paul’s injunction, they could not
ring with the understauding also, unless they were worshippers
themselves, He would put it more broadly. What was it that
the bells did? They represented a great voice, and they all
knew what that voice was intended to represent. Itwas in-
tended to represent the voice of praise, So all the inscriptions
on the old bells told them. It was to utter the praise of God
that those beaten tongues bung there, and they did it melod-
iously indeed, carolling over the whole surface of the land. Or
again, it was in commemoration of the dying and dead, perhaps
in solemn muffled peal, speaking out of the depths of sorrow. So
it was bis bearers pealed out on behalf of the dying and the
dead. When they looked at the inscriptions on their bells
they could see the records of days passed. Well, we live in the
times of chances, He would say in conclusion, let their great
traditional art he a symbol of Jesus Christ, the same yesterday,
. to-day, and for all time,

THE LUNCHEON.

Luncheon was served in the hall of Christ Church, and
a large number sat down to the repast. The Archdeacon
of Oxford was in the chair, and among those who were
present were the Bishop of Oxford, the Master of the
Guild, the Revs. R, H. Hart-Davis, G. F. Coleridge, W.
C. Carter, R. W. Carew Hunt, J. B. Kirtby, H. C. Wilder,
G. A. Littledale, W. J. Palmer, A.C. R. Freeborn, W.
H. George, B. Long, and S. M. Winter, Messrs. A. W.
Pike, R. Buckinnd, F. Dentry, F. W. Hopgood, W. Pole
Routh, F, Webb, ]. W. Wilkins, W, J. Smith, and the
Secretary (Mr. A, E. Reeves).

The loyal toast having been duly honoured,

The Rev. G.’F. Coleridge said it was a great honour
which had been entrusted to him that afternoon, that of
giving them the toa st of the Bishop, the Archdeacon, and
the organist. They were not only pleased to see the
Bishop at the luncheon, but they were extremely grateful
to him that in his very busy and varied life, he had come
and addressed them. As he reminded them that morning,
there were two sounds which were dear to the English-
man, the song of the birds, and sound of the bells. But
what he believed they liked most of all was the sonnd of
their Bishop's voice at their annual festival (laughter and
cheers). Then they had the Archdeacon of Oxford as
their chairman. They had also to toast the organist.

The toast was cordially received, and Bishop Gore, in
replying, said that any service that he could do for the
promotion of bellringing, he would most gladly do. He

was heartlly glad to be amougst them that afternoon
(cheers).

The Atchdeacon of Oxford, in rising to propose the
toast of ¢ The Guild,” said he came to the toast of the
day. He should say that they were going to drink to
their noble selves, e supposed everyone almost who was

there, was a member of the Guild, so they were therefore

' going to drink their own health, and he proposed the

toast with the greatest possible pleasure. What he had
to do was to propose the toast of the Guild, embodied as
it was in the Master. They all kaew Mr. Jenkyn better
than the speaker, though the latter was a neighouur of his
in Berkshire. They knew the zeal which he put into the
work, and the skill which he brought to bear on the
science of ringing. The speaker noticed the Bishop call
bell-ringing an art all through that beautiful sermon which
he preached that morning. He referred to it as an art,
which indeed it was. But it was also a science, and a
most intricate science, too. Their Master gave his mind,
his muscle, his brain, his heart to bell-ringing, and no one
could do more than that (Cheers).

The toast was received with enthusiasm.

The Rev. C. W, O, Jenkyn, in responding, thanked
them very much for the way they had drunk his health,
and also for the way they had drunk to the health of the
Guild. As Master of the Guild he looked upon himself
as the Guild’s chief servant, and he wished members to
look upon him in that light. He was always ready to
receive any suggestions by which he could promote the
welfare of the Guild, and he would endeavour to carry
them out to the best of his ability. One might like on an
occasion like that, to give a sort of resume of what the
Guild was doing throughout the diocese. That would
take too long,and perhaps such matters were more
properly kept on their anoual printed report. But he
would like especially to mention the work that was being
done throughout the Guild iu different places by their lady
members. (Cheers). It was a very quiet, unostentatious
work. He did nor want the best of them to- be contented
with the way they saw the Church in their parish. He
really wanted them ro ring their bells better, and feel that
they were working a musical instrument. (Hear, hear).
If they were not capable of ringing a touch on Sunday
mornings, they should ring a round, and ring that well,

The Rev. R. H. Hart-Davis said he thought they should
express their thanks to Mr. Reeves, ¢ the modest man be-
hind the scenes,” who had been responsible for the work of
that festival. Some of them had been to Oxford three
times in the life of the Guild—in 1882 when the Rev.
Walton Hook was the preacher: in 1900, when Canon
Ince preached to them; and lastly, that day. He asked
them to drink to the health of the Chairman, who for so
long had been a friend to the Guild. (Applause).

The toast was heartily drunk.

The Archdeacon briefly responded, and eulogised the
work of Mr. Hart-Davis, and in this way prepared the way
for the presentation which followed. He handed him a
hendsome silver inkstand, which, with an armchair, the
Guild had been pleased to give him in recognition of his
long and faithful service to the Guild, extending over
twenty-two yaars. .

The Rev. R. H. Hart-Davis, in thanking them, said
there was no work which he had done in his life, next to
his work as parson, that he had more thoroughly thrown
his heart into, than into the work which he had been able
to attempt for the Guild. (Cheers). He must say two or
three words of very hearty thanks to them for what they
had given him. Ifthey would allow him to go on as their
hon. treasurer, that work would give him a use for that
beautiful inkstand which they had handed to him through
their chairman, and whenever he had any writing to do for
the Guild it wonld be done by the use of that inkstand.

The gathering then broke up. During the afternoon the
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ringers visited the following towers, which had been
placed at their disposal.: Christ Church Cathedral, New
College, St. Mary Magdalene, St. Aldate’s, St. Giles’s,
All Saints, Holywell St. Cross, St. Ebbe, and Iffley.

THE BUSINESS MEETING.
EIGHT-BELL TOWERS IN OXFORD.

The business meeting was held in the Chapter House o!f
the Cathedral after the service. The Master of the Guild
presided, and he was supported by the Revs, W. ]J. Palmer,
]J. B. Kirby, R. H. Hart-Davis, G. F. Coleridge, W. C.
Carter, and Mr. A. E. Reeves (Secretary). Letters of
apology for absence were received from the Revs. S. C. F,
Angel Smith, R. P, Newhouse, E. B. Cox, Canon Drum-
mond, and Mr. W, Newell.

The officers were re-elected.

It was announced that the festival in 1913 would be held
at Wokingham,

The committee recommended the following grants, viz.,
Twyford (Berks) £4 4s., and Checkendon £2 2s.

The Rev. R. H. Hart-Davis, in presenting the Robinson
Memorial Committee report, stated they had accepted the
tender of Mr. Reeves for the erection of a screen in the
belfry of Drayton (Berks) Church. They also proposed to
to put a tablet to cost £10, in Drayton Church. There
was £46 not expended, and they had several questions
before them as to how to spend the residue. It would be
left to the committee, and they wonld probably spend it on
a tablet in the cloisters or for a communion plate.

The Chairman remarked that the special committee
appointed to draw up forms of service for the Guild had
been going on with the work, and had submitted several
ideas for services to the Bishop, and none of these had
been entirely satisfactory up to the present. He had their
last attempt in his hands at that moment, and they would
get his report on it before very long. Therefore he asked
that the matter be left in the hands of the committee for a
little while longer.

The Rev. G. F. Coleridge presented the report of the
Central Council meeting for 1g12.

Mr. King said he wished to bring before their notice the
fact that there was no eight-bell tower in Oxford, and he
was wondering whether something could be done to get an
eight-bell tower in the city. They had many six-bell
towers, as they knew. :

The Chairman said he was very glad Mr. King had
brought the matter forward. It had been on their minds
fora very long time. He approached the Vicar of St.
Peter-in-the-East on the matter, and also the Vicar of St.
Giles, but nothing had been decided. They wanted an
Oxford man to give them a lead, and make a suggestion,
and he was perfectly certain they would do their best to see
the matter through.

Mr. Fox thought it would be most suitable to have the
eight-bell . installation in St. Giles' belfry, and knew
nowhere where it could be done so cheaply. .

The Chairman said he would write to the.Vicar, and
the meeting terminated.

BY ROYAL
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ST, JOHN BAPTIST SOCIETY. LEYTONSTONE.

The above society held their fourreenth annual outing
on July 6th and 7th, Bury St. Edmunds being visited for
the third time. Coming from different branches on the

- Great Eastern Railway, eleven members met at Liverpool

Street in time to board the 5.5 a.m. train for East Anglia.
Arriving at Bury at 8 16, we made our way to The Brit-
annia hotel which we made our headquarters. Our hostess
had breakfast waiting for us, and needless to say, we
quickly disposed of it. At g o'clock we found a smart
pair-horse brake, with no other than Mr. H. Turner (who
is Master of the ringers at the Norman Tower), reins in
hand, ready to convey us on our usual Saturday tour.
Soon we were driving through country lanes with fields on
either side looking gay in their scarlet, yellow, and green.
Four miles of this delightful pleasure brought us to the
parish church of St. Mary Rougham where the peal of six,
tenor 16 cwt., was soon raised and going to Ipswich Sar-
prise, a good 720 being the result. A touch of Plain Bob
for the younger members of the band, concluded the rin-
ging, and as we had to keep to time and programme, we
were soon on our way to Drinkstone (All Saints), where
we were met by the Rector, the Rev. —., Horne, who very
kindly accompanied some of us round the building, ex-
plaining the various items of interest which this church
contains, while others were ringing a 720 of Durham
Surprise. The rev. gentleman did a great deal towards
rehanging his own bells, which are a pleasant ring, tenor
about 12 cwt. A short touch of Plain Bob, and we were
on the road again, Woolpit St. Mary being the next on the
list. This was reached after a short drive. Here we found
a very beautiful church, the carved cak ceiling alone
being worth a visit. The bells (6) were soon going to
Lincoln Surprise, which, after a. second attempt was
successful. By this time the inner man required atten-
tion, and we adjourned to The Swan hotel, where a splen-
did repast awaited us in the good old Suffolk style. This
over, we were in our brake again, and after a drive of four
miles, came to ‘St. Mary’s church, Wetherden. A %20 of
Wells Surprise was rung on the not too easy ring of six.
Another drive of between six and seven miles brought
us to Walsham-le-Willows, where we were met by the
Vicar, the Rev. C. S. Ward, who kindly invited ns to tea.
Mounting the tower, where hangs a good ring of six, tenor
13 cwt. A good 420 of London Surprise was rung, fol-
lowed by a short touch of Plain Bob. By this time tea
was ready, and we were soon taking advantage of the
Vicar’s hospitality. During tea the rev. gentleman
related an interesting tale concerning the carved oak
angels that are missing from the beautiful ceiling of the
chancel. Time did not allow us to stay long, and after
thanking the Vicar, we proceeded to Ixworth, where our
Master was anxious to ring a 720 of London Surprise on
the bells of his native town. This proved successful, but
was rather a big job, as the bells (which are a melodious
ring of six, tenor 16 cwt.), sadly require the attention of a
bell-hanger. A movement is on foot to rehang them, with
a frame to carry two trebles. They would make a splen-
octave if two new bells were added. The Vicar (Rev. —.
Harrison), gave us a very kindly welcome to Ixworth.
Our last place of call on Saturday was Great Barton,
where, at the church of The Holy Innocents, a good 420
of York Surprise was rung. A new treble was added to
the old ring of five a short time ago, but is a very weak
one. All this time the clerk of the weather had been
extremely kind, but now rain commenced to fall, and
those members whom experience had taught to bring

overcoats and umbrellar, reaped the benefit of their fore-
thought during our short drive to Bury, which was
reached about 9.30 a.m. Some of onr members ventured
out shopping, but were driven back by the heavy down-
pour of rain. Supper over, we retired to bed, glad to
rest after the exertions of the day. Six o’clock on Sun-
day morning, saw us astir, as Mr. Turner had arranged
for us to ring for the early service at the Norman Tower.
Through drenching rain we made our way, and just be-
fore 7 o’clock the beautiful peal of ten bells was ringing
to a few rounds to let rll our band have a pull on them.
These are a melodious ring, tenor 30 cwt., worthy of the
noble tower they hang in, which is said to be the most

‘perfect example of Norman architecture in Europe.

Stedman Caters was next on the list, but was unfor-
tunately lost in the last couase-end. Treble Ten was
tried, also Grandsire Caters, but time did not allow of
the last named being finished. Breakfast over, a visit
was paid to the grand old church of St. Mary, where
Mr. Lomax had the bells ready, and Superlative and
Double Norwich were tried, but the touches were both lost
after some good striking. The bells here are a grand ring
of eight, tenor 28 cwt. Some of our members decided to
stop for service, while others had a three-mile walk to
Horringer, whers some touches of Plain and Treble Minor
were rung on the light ring at the church of St. Leonard.

A sharp walk back gave us a good appetite for dinner,
aud then for our last place of call on our tour, viz., Forn-
ham St. Martin. This was a delightful Sunday afternoon
walk, the sunshine adding glories to the scene. Reaching
the church we found a very light ring of six, tenor 61 cwt.
Soon they were going to the tune of Norwich Surprise, a
720 being completed in twenty-two minutes. Plain Bob
and Treble Bob were rung, and then we walked back to
tea. This over, we had to say good-bye to old and new
friends, and made our way to the railway station to catch
the 6.14 p.m. train for London, which was reached at
g.10. Before parting we all concluded we hed spent
another successful outing.

The company wish thryugh the medium of * Tur BeLL
NEews " to thank the various clergy for granting the use
of their bells, and the 16cal ringers for meeting us and
making us so welcome; and last, but not least, Mr. H.
Turaer for making arrangements and driving round on the
Saturday, and giving the young hands such fatherly
advice. : G. D.

The following is a summary of the ringing done by the
company on their tout:

RoucHAM.— At St. Mary's church, 720 Ipswich Surprise, G,
A. Black, S. Goodenough, G, Dawson, W, Theobald, W. Miller
(conductor), H, Torble.

DriNksTONE.—At All Saints’ church, 720 Durham Srrprise.
W, Theobald, G. Dawson, W. Doran, G. A. Black, J. Moule
(conductor), H. Torble,

WoorriT.—At St. Mary’s church, 720 Lincoln Sutprise. 8.
Goodenough (conductor), G. A. Black, H. Torble, W. Theobald,
W. Miller, J. Moule.

WETHERDEN,—At St. Mary’s church, 720 Wells Surprise. W,
Doran, S. Goodenough, G. Dawson, W. Theobald, W. Miller
(conductor), J. Moule. :

WaLsHAM-LE-WiLLows.~—At. St. Mary’s church, 720 London
Surpriee. S. Goodenough, G. A. Black (conductor), W. Doran,
W. Miller, J. Moule, H. Torble.

IxworTH.~—At St, Mary’s church, 720 London Surprise. G.
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A.‘Black, W. Theobald, J. Moule, G. Dawson, W, Miller (con-
ductor), H. Torble.

BarToN.—At the church of the Holy Innocents, 7z0 York Sur-
ise. H. Torble, S. Goodenough, G. Dawson, W, Theobald,
. Miller (conductor), J. Moule,

Fornuam.—At St. Martin’s church, 720 Norwich Surprise. W,
Doran,b‘lﬂ. Miller (conductor), G. A. Black, G. Dawson, J. Moule,
H. Torble.

F. Doran, A. Fiddis and A. Prior rang in touches of Plain
and Treble Bob at all the above-mentioned places,

vﬂ tices,

The charge for the insertion of Notices under this heading Is Sixpence for
36 words, for the first insertion; repetitions at half that price. Notices
shonld come to hand not later than Wednesday morning.

The Middlesex County Association and London Diocesan
Guild.—North and East District.-A meeting will be held at Finchley
on Saturday. July 27th. Bells ready at 3.30. Short service at 5.30,
to which all ringers are earnestly -invited,

173, St. John's Road, Walthamstow. C. T. Coies, Hon. Sec.

The Kent County Association.-Lewisham District,-The quarterly
meetiog of this district will be held at Eynsford on Saturday, July
a7th, (insfead of the 20th). Bells available at 3.30 p.m. Service at
5.30 p.m. with address by the Rev. M, C.  Elphinstone, Vicar, Tea
will be provided at the Vicarage by the kindness of the Vicar and
Mrs. Elphinstone, Half-rail fares up to 2s, paid at this meeting.

T. GrooMeeipGe, Hon. Dis. Sec.

34, Adelaide Road, Chislehurst.

The L ancashire Association.—Blackburn Branch,—The annual
branch meeting will be held at the patish charch, Blackburn, on
Saturday, July 27th. Bells ready at 3 o’clock Business meeting at
7 p.m. A committee meetiog will be held same daie. A good atten-
dance is requested. ]J. Wartson, Branch Sec.

26, London Road, Blackburn. .-

. The Warwickshire Guild.—The annual meeting will be held at
Warwick on Saturday, July 27th, Committee meeting at 4.0 p.m,
in St. Mary's Vestry. Service at St, Mary's at 4.45 p.m Preacber—
Rev. Canon Baillie, Vicar of St. Michael’s, Coventry, Bells avail-
able during the afterucon and evening: St. Mary’'s (10), St.
Nicholas (8) All Saints, Emscote, (8) Tea (usual charge), at The
Globe hotel, after service. Business meeting to follow.
Sbottery. Rav. C. C. Cox, Hon. Sec.

Worcestershire and Districts Association.—Southern Branch.—
A qnarteriy meeting will be held at Overbury on Saturday, July 27th.
Service,. with an address. at 4.30 p.m. A free tea and business
meeting after service, Bells (6), at 3 p.m,

- Jaues Hemming. Hon, Br. Sec,

10, Church Bank, Hampton, Evesham,

Durham and Newcastle Diocesan Association.—The Summer
Moeeting will be held on Saturday, July 27th, at Corbridge and Hex-
ham. Bells available all afternoon -and evening, Tea at The Tyne-
dale hotel, Corbridge, at 5 p.m, Caas, Topp, Hon. Sec.

26, Greenbanok Crescent, Dailington,

The Llandaff Diocesan Association —The next quarterly meeting
will be held at Llanbradach on Saturday, July a7th, at 4.30.
Rev. Connor L. PrICE, M a.
Joax W. Joxzs, ' }H“ Secs.
Piercefield, Barrack Hill, Newport.

The Ely Diocesan Association —Sudbury District.—The annual’

district meeting will be held at Lavenham on Saturday, July 27th.

Bells available will be Lavenham, and probably Preston. Tea, fol-

lowed by a buslness meeting, will be at 4 p.m. . Will all members

make an effort to attend. R. L. Garonger, District Secretary,
Lavenbham.

The Salisbury Diocesan Guild.—East Dorset Branch.—A quar-
terly meeting will be held at Swanage on Saturday, July 27th. Ringing
from 3. Service at 4.45. Address by the Rector—Rev. H. E,
Eardley. Tea in school at 5.15, followed by business meeting. The
towers ai Wareham, and St. James‘s, Poole, will be open in the
evening, C. A. PaiLrips, Hon. Br. Sec.

Peterborongh and District Association.—The anoual meeting
will be held at Peterborough on Monday, August sth. Bells avail-
able—Cathedral (s), St. John‘s (8), St. Mary‘s (6). Service at St.
Mary‘s church at 4.30. Tea at: Fitzwilliam Temperance hotel.

Mesting after. Will those who intend to be present at tea pl;;se
notify me not later than August 1st. F. T. Cooxg, Hon. Sec.
195, Gladstone Road, Peterborough.

Tha Salisbury Diocesan Guild.-——In order to facilitate the pub-
lishing of future reports. conductors of peals are requested to send
particulars of peals called by them within seven days of such perfor—
mance to T. Hervey Beams, Asst. Hon, Sec.

Bradpole, Bridport,.

N.B.-Will conductors of peals since January 1st. 1912, also oblige.

Notice.—Shoreditch Belis Fund.—Funds are urgen'ly needed to
pnt this grand ¢1d peal in proper repair. £50 wanted before the work
can be commenced, Who will help :a poor parish? Contributions
thankfully received and gratefully acknowledged. Collecting cardsalso
supplied by H. J. Bradley, The Parish Church, Shorediich, E.

ST. MARY THE VIRGIN, PUTNEY.
- ANnuarL QUTING.

The annual outing of the Association of Church Bell
Ringers at St. Mary the Virgin, Putney, took place on
Saturday, July-2oth, when thirtcen members paid visits to
the churches of Haslemere "and Farnham, Surrey.
Leaving Putney shortly after eight o’clock
Farnham was reached just before eleven. Here
a move was made to the church, where the captain of the
local band and one or two other members were in waiting.
After inspecting the tower and belfry, which was found
to be kept in as good a condition as one could wish, the
beautiful peal of eight bells were set going to Grandsire,
and with this and Plain Bob were kept moving till half-
past twelve, when a halt was called for dinner, Before
leaving the thanks of the party were tendered to the local
members who had put everything in readiness, and satis-
faction was expressed at the easy “go” of the bells and
the manner in which everything was kept. Regret was
felt that the time had come to leave so fine a ring.  After
dinner the party returned to the L. and S.W.R. station,
‘where a motor bus was boarded, and a glorious run over
Hindhead landed us in Haslemere, a very sharp - thunder-
storm being passed through on the way. FHéré ad hearty
welcome was met with from the local band, who had
made every prepartion, and the bells, from the time of
arrival till half-past six, and again after tea till half-past
eight, rang out in touches of Grandsire, Plaid
Bob, Stedman and Treble Bob. Here again the * going ”
was good. Altogether a most enjoyable day was spent,
and about nine o’clock the party left Haslemere for home,
which was reached about half-past eleven. :

o
g

Dover (Kent).—Qn Sanday, July 21st, for evening service at
St. Mary’s church, a gquarter-peal of Grandsire Triples, in 4
mins. R. Stevens, G, Saunders, A. Roberts, H. C. Saywell, S.
Carter, C. Turner (cooductor), H. J. Saunders, G. Godfrey.
Composed by L. Head, of Lyminge, Kent. Rung as a compli-
ment to Mr. S. Carter, of Hounslow, Middlesex, who was on a
visit to Dover.

SITUATIONS WANTED BY
FRUITERER, GREENGROCER, age 27. Eleven
years’ experience. Change-ringer, 6, 8, and 10 bells. Can
drive and cycle.——~W. P, 2, Rose Villas, Embrook,
Wokingham. ‘ ‘
GROCERS' ASSISTANT, TRAVELLER, or any position of
trust. Age 23. Change-ringer on 6, 8 or 10 bells.—Apply, C.R.
Victoria House, Vandyke Road, Leighton Buzzard. .
READER waauts sit. Practical. reliable, accurate ; jobbing or
pews. Nine years' experience. Change.ringer, 6,8, or 10 bells,
—W. D,, 65, Khartoum Road, Flaistow, - _ .
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The Jasper Snowdon Series.

ROPE-SIGHT. 1s,6d,, sixth ed.; 150 pages; treats Plain Bob;
commences on three bells.

GRANDSIRE, 2s. 6d. ; second ed, ; 264 pages ; commences on five
bells; complete with the Charts of W. H. TaoMPsON, E8Q.,
etc.

STANDARD METHODS, is,6d.; fifthed.; revised; Diagrams
alone 18. 6d.; 41 pages; Letterpressalone 1s, 6d.; 100 pages.

STEDMAN, 12s, 6d,; 275 pages, by the Rev C. D, P, Davies, M.A,,
with an appendix by Siz ArTrUR Heywoop, Bart , etc. etc.

TREBLE BOB. Partl. 1s. 6d.; second ed.; with appendix; 108
closely printed pages. Part 11, suited for Conductors only ;
very scarce; 2s. 14d ; 236 pages.

DOUBLE NORWICH C.B, Major. At present ont of print.

SURPRISE PEALS, Cambridge, Superlative and London;
compiling.

Al post free, on receipt of postal order ; from

WM. SNOWDON, 24, Springfield Mount, Leeds.

SIR ARTHUR HEYWOOD'S WORK.

lDUFFlELD:" A Musicar MzTHOD ror 8, 10, AND
12 BeLLs. A Broadshest coataining full disections for cinging the above
uay be obtained, ﬁllll. from Siz AsTrur Harwoop, Bart., Dnfield, Derby-
The pampblet on this method is now out ot print.)

USIC specially arranged in Mss. (if not in print) to suit

almost any nnmber of ringers and bells. Terms, etc.

on application from WM, GORDON, 44, CELTIC STREET, WEBE
LANE, STOCKPCKT.

=

detablished 1760.

JOHN NICOLTL,
@Church Bell Bope and
@lock Bope lannfacturer,
60, QUEEN'S ROAD, PECKHAM,

LONDON, S.E.

(Two minutes from Queen's Road Station, L.B, & §.0. Railway.)

Late 155, Keeton's Road, Bermondsey.

Maker to St. Paul's Cathedral, Westminster Abbey,
smperial Institute, Canterbury, Edinburgh, St.
#sans, Lincoln, Durham, Peterborough, Melbourne
Australia), Rochester, Dublin (St. Patrick’s), Man-
thester, and Worcester Cathedrals, etc., etc.

.| from this Office at 1s. 1d. per doz., post free.

July 27. 1912,
, Peal Tablets.
MARBLETTE MARBLETTE
is the best ma- Peal Tablet

terial for Peal
Tablets, "It is

give the great-
est satisfaction

a non-absorbent e n to all-

substance B R The following
clogely resem- extracts from
bling Marble testimonials re-
and has a highly ceived speak for

polished black
surface, which
is not aftected

themselves:

“The Tablet has
given cvery satisface

by the atmos- o s admived
Phere. . YT like the tablel
The lettering is immensely, and so do
cut into the il who have seen it

We have had & on
view in a prominent
chop window for a

face and gilded
with pure gold,

U vook.”
producing a " i

R N Y L]
handsome &nd . . - o . oo m m S et o the
striking anpear Yorch of our Church.”

ance.
Sole Manufactwrers— CASPAR & CoO.,
33, King's Road, St. Pancras, N.W,

Memorial Brasses, Btained Glass Windows and Tablet Work of every
desoription.

PEAL CARDS.

You want to keep a record of the peals in which you ring.
You can get them nicely printed on tinted bordered cards
Send for
specimens of new selection, which surpasses any others yet
sent out. A Ringer writes:—*“I and the rest of the band
are very pleased with such nice cards as you supply.”

We can also supply Records of Peals printed on large
Cards, tinted and with grandly illuminated borders, suitable
for framing and hanging in your Ringing Chamber,

“ BeL. News” OFFICE,
1, SELBORNE Roap, WaLTHamstow, Lonpon, N.E,

IMPORTANT NOTICES.

Will correspondents please note that ail communications for
insertion in * TuE BELL NEws” should be addressed to ‘* The
Editor, * Tue BELL NEws," 1, Selborne Road, Walthamstow.”
In tbe past some have been addressed to the Publisbers, thus
being delayed, and not reaching us till too late for insertion in
the current issue. e .

All business communications should be addressed to “ Mr,
Geo. Carter, 1, Selborne Road, Walthamstow,”

Notices of any kind, to ensure insertion in tbe current issue,
should reach us not later than first post on Thursday morning,
Unless this is done we cannot insert them till the following week,

« Tee Berr News” will be sent to any address in the United
Kingdom for 1s. 8d. per quarter, or 6s. 6d. per year,

Many correspondents when sending copy write a note asking
for insertion, This means that they have to pay 1d. for postage,
There is no need for this; if the copy is put in an unsealed en-
velope, with just the name of the sender, we shall understand,
and a #d. stamp will be sufficient, But the eavelope must be
endorsed ' News copy only.”




july 2%, 1912,

THE BELL NEWS AND RINGERS' RECORD: 287

P e

@The Bell Hebos and Bingers” Hecord,

SATURDAY, JULY 27, 1912,

THE LADIES' PEAL.

On_another page will be found the record of a peal rung
entirely by girls. Such a peal ought to make the Exer-
cise throughout the kingdom feel prouder. To think that
a band could be got together from all parts and to success-
fully accomplish that which we men practice regularly
together seems almost incredible. But one by one the
lady ringers have made their presence felt in various
Associations, and if in some Societies they have not been
acknowledged—well, more’s the pity for the men. This
peal ought to shew the outside world what a fascination
ringing possesses for its votaries. ‘We went down to
Cubitt Town and heard over two hours of the peal, in-
cluding the finish, and it goes without saying that those
who remained gave the girls an ovation.  We may say
that altogether the ladies were in the tower about five
hours, and had any of them at the back end been com-
pelled by fatigue or dry-running of the bells to give up
before the finish, no one could have blamed them; but
they did not. Although fatigue was there—occasional
trips shewed that—the desire for success prevailed to the
end, and the result is that the Ladies’ Guild can hand on
to posterity something to be proud of. To Miss Parker
come the dowblc honour. This was her 50th peal, a record
no girl has hitherto achieved. Those who doubted the
wisdom of girls ringing with the opposite sex need doubt
no more. Just' as Ringing Associations raised ringing
from its squalid environment, so ‘the presence of a girl or
woman in the belfry to-day brings with it a purer atmos-
phere—where it is necessary, Those of us who mix
regularly with them have no doubt at all—we know. The
consummation of this peal was, in the words of Hamlet,
“devoutly to be wished,” and baving- seen it, or rather
heard it done, we lift our glass, as in the olden time, to the
toast and say—* The Ladles: God bless ’em.”

€he Tetvopolis,
THE MIDDLESEX COUNTY¥ ASSOCIATION AND LONDON
DIOCESAN GUILD,
On Wednesday, Fwby 17, 1912, in Three Hours,
AT THE CHURCH OF ST. JunN, WATERLOO ROAD,

A PEAL OF DOUBLE NORWICH COURT BOB MA]OR,
5072 CHANGES. Tenor 20 cwt.

FrEDERICKE Davis .- o Treble. | SEDLBY COLLINS .. .. 5.
GeorgE M. KiLey* .. .. 2. TaoMas KING +0 40 o0
Atrrep W, GRIMRS .. 40" 3. Fzank HalkRs .. .. .. 7.
ABMiGBR |, TBOLLOPE .. 4. Jaues E. Davis ., ..Tenoo.

Composed by A. CraveN. and Condncted by Jauzs E. Davis,
*First peal of Major. Mr. Grimes' goth peal this year.

-
v

PrRITTLEWELL.~On Sunday, July 21st, at St. Mary’s church,
in honour of the wedding of a chorister—Mr. C. Osborne to
Miss Horner, a 720 of Kent Treble Bob. Messrs, Kebby, Chalk,
Bedwell, Wilson, Wilson, Judd. With the ringepe’ best wishes.

A DIAGRAM OF UNION-TRIPLES (1893), may be had
gratis, on application by letter to W, H. THomMPsON, §,
Sillwood Street, Brighton, to whom the unsold remainder has
been returned by the;publishers,

POPLAR, LONDON, E,
THE LADIES’ NATIONAL GUILD OF RINGERS.
On Saturday, July 20, 1913, in Three Howrs and Foxy Minsutes,
AT Carist CrurcH, CusiTT Town,

A PEAL OF ORANDSIRE TRIPLES, so40 CHANGES;

GROVES's VARIATION OF PARRRR’s TWBLYR~PART, Tenor .12 cwt.
Miss Sagar Picorr «oTrveble, | Miss NELLIE GILLINGHAM 8§,
Miss Eva N. BELCHER® 2. {tMiss EvBLyn StBBL. .. 6.
Miss LiLian A, WiLLsoN 3. Miss EpitH K, PARKER .. 7.
Miss Mary N, Juxes .. 4. {Miss CLara BeasLey .. Tenor.

Condncted by Miss E. K. PazkER.

*First peal in the method. {First peal with a bob bell, }First
peal. Miss Parker’s fiftieth peal, The band wish io thank the Vicar
and ringers of Cabitt Town for their kindoess; Messrs, Mears and
Stainbank for kindly entertaining some of the band; and Mr. ],
Thomas for sitting in the tower during the peal in case of emergency.

@ he Provinces,

BROMLEY, KENT.—THE KENT CJUNTY ASSOCIATION.
On Satwrday, Fuly 6, 1912, i Three Howrs and Twelve Minutes,
Ar TR CHUECH OF ST. LUKE,

A PEAL OF CAMBRIDGE SURPRISE MAJOR
5056 CHANGES, Tenor 15 cwt. ‘

GBORGE DURLING .. . Trebls. | Franx BENNERTE e oo 5.
EpwiN BARNEKT, JUN. .. 2, WicLLiaM J. JerPRIES .. 6.
Franx I. Hairs s se 3. JaMrs E, Davis  «. o« 7
1saac EMERY .. o0 o0 4 ALrrep W, GrIMES,, ..Ténor,

Composed by C. MippLETON. and Conducted by FRaNk BENNBIT.

First peal of Major on the bells. Mr, A. W. Grimes’ 150th peal.
and the conductor's 50th peal in the method. .

DRAYTON, BERKS.—THE OXFORD DIOCRSAN GUILD.
On Swunday, Jwly 14, 1912, in Two Honrs and Fsfty Minwics.
Ar THE CHURCH or Sr. PETES,
A PEAL OF BOB MAJOR, 5024 CHANGES.
Tenor g cwt. 1 qr. 20 lbs,

GeosGgE HoLisiELD, S8EN. Trebls. § WiLLiax H. FusssLrn .. 3.
GEBORGE F. WiLLIAMS .. 2. *WILLIAM STONE s se
GEORGE HoLlFIELD, JUN.* 3. *WicLiam Parers .. .. 7.
EDGAR HOMFRRY o0 o0 4 RiceABD BOUCKLAND .. ..Temor.

Composed and Condncted by GEorGE F, WiLL1aNS,
*First peal in the method.

HAILSHAM, SUSSEX.
THE HERTFORDSHIRE ASSOCIATION.
On Monday, Fuly 15, 1912, in Two Howrs and Fifty-scven Minutes,
AT TBE CHURCE oF ST, MaRy,
A PEAL OF STEDMAN TRIPLES, 5040 CHANGES
Trursrans's FOOR-PART., Tenor 10 cwt,

FeeEpERICK G. BLow* ..Trebls.| Go. H, Howst .. +¢ 8,
Josape F, CBALLEY* .. 2, LEwis A, GOODENOUGH .. 6.
CHARLES JEPFs®.. .« <. 3. Epwarp WHITEREAD .. 7.
EBNBST RANDALL} <o o 4. Horace E, C. GoopznoucETsor,

Conducted by E, WHITEREAD.
*First peal. tFirst peal on eight bells.

BRIGHTON, SUSSEX,
THE SUSSEX COUNTY ASSOCIATION,
Osn Satwyday, Jsly 20, 1912, in Three Hours and Two Minules,
AT Tum CHURCH OF St, PRTER,
A PEAL OF STEDMAN TRIPLES, 5040. CHANGES ;
TBURSTANS's. FOUE~PART.

Jonx T. RICKMAR, M.A, o Treble. | PriLiP ALLFERY o0 o0 5.
ARTHUR W. GRAVBTIT .. 2. KerrB HART  «¢ o o+ G
CuristoreER H. HuGBES 3. | A. D, STONE o0 v oo 7.
RICHARD STREDWICE.: oo 4. TBAYTON JBPPREY .. ..Tenor,

Conducted by A. D, SToNE,
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ALDENHAM, HERTS.
THE HERTFORDSHIRE ASSOCIATION.
On Wednesday, Fuly 17, 1912, in Three Hours and One Minxie,
AT TBR CHURCH OF ST. JouN THE BaPTIsT,
A PEAL OF TREBLE BOB MAJOR, 5088 CHANGES;
Ix THE KENT VARIATION, Tenor 15 cwt,

WaLter S. INwoop.. ..Treble. | BeRTRAM PBEWETT .. . 5.
Ricaagp Darrow .. .. 2. Francis A. SMITH .. .. 6.
Artavs W. Dix s se 3. Joun H. B, HEgsE .. .. 7.
CoarLEs W. SmiTH.. .. 4. Maorice F. R. HigsrRT .. Tenor,

Composed by Jossra W, ParkEr, and
Conducted by BErTRAM PREWRIT.

Rung as a compliment to Mr. Robert E, Stavert, of the Bushey
Society. on the occasion of his marriage to Miss Winifred Arnold,
which took place at Ross, Herefcrdshire, the same day.

HURSTPIERPOINT, SUSSEX.
THE SUSSEX COUNTY ASSOCIATION,
On Wednesday, Tuly 19, 1912, in Two Hosrs and Fifty-three Minstes,
AT TER CBURCH OF THE HoLy TEINITY,
A PEAL OF STEDMAN TRIPLES, 5040 CHANGES
THURsTANS'S FoUuR-PagT, Tenor 14 cwt.

{:nn W. STRUDY .. ..Treble. | JoHN OAPP .. o0 ¢ s §.
ENRY STALEAM ° .o .. 3. A. D SToONE .. .. .« O.
CanisrorERR H. HuGHEs 3. Kerrg HarTr .. .. .. 7.
Wireiax J. ALLISS .. +s 4. WiILL1AM STENNING .. ..Tenor.

Conducted by Kerra Harr.

KELSALE, SUFFOLK.
THE NORWICH DIOCESAN ASSOCIATION,
On Satwrday, July 20, 1912, in Two Hours and Fifty-six Minules,
Ar TR CHURCH OF ST. PETER,
A PEAL OF TREBLE BOB MAJOR, 5088 CHANGES;
In THE OxroRD VARIATION. Tenor 164 cwt.

aMES M, Bauwry .. ..Tredbls. | HeENgY PByLLies ., .. 5.
oBN W. AvISS v .. o 2. Coarres F. Baitey .. 6,
Lzonarp P, BalLey* .. 3. Fpgar H, BaiLsy .. .. 7.
GRrORGE HaRDY .. .. .. 3. Egnpst S. BamLey ..

Composed by TaoMas Day, and Coaducted by CaasLes F, BaiLey.
- *First peal of Oxford. S

HILLINGDON, MIDDLESEX.

THE MIDDLESEX COUNTY ASSOCIATION AND LONDON
DIOCESAN GUILD.

On Saturday, Fuly 20, 1912, in Three Howurs and Thirty-thyee Minuics,
* At THR CHURCH OF ST. JomN, .

A PEAL OF CAMBRIDGE SURPRISE ROYAL,
s040 CHANGES. Tenor 21 cwt. 1 qr. 22 lbs,

Loslrn J. Péarr ., ..Treblz, ] Wrrwan Pve ., .. .. G
BERTRAM PREWEIT .. .. 2. REUBEN SANDERS .. .. 7.
Isaac G, SHADE.. .+ +¢ 3. Jauzs E. Davis .. .. 8.
GzorGE R, PYR.. .. .. 4. ALrreD W. GRIMES e Qe
CHazres T.CoLES .. .. 5 | ErngsT PYE .. .. ..Tenor,

Compdsed'by. WiLLias Py, and Conducted by BERTRAM PREWETT,

First peal of Royal on the bells. Rang as a birthday compliment
to ]. . Pratt.

HANDSWORTH, BIRMINGHAM.

THE ST. MARTIN'S. GUILD FOR THE DIOCESE OF
: BIRMINGHAM. )

On Satwurday, Jwly 20, 1913, in Two Hoxrs and Fifty-three Minuies,
- AT tHER Parwm CHUECH,

A PEAL OF CAMBRIDGE SURPRISE MA]JOR,
5056 CHANGES, - Tenor 12 cwt. in K sharp.

SaMURL GROVE .. o+ .Treble.| Mommis J. MormIs .. .. 5.
AMES H, SHEPHRED e 24 oBN NEAL.. .. .. .. 6.
1LLIAM D. JaMBs*.. .. 3 *James L. WELLS .. .. 7.
CHARLES DICEENS .. +o 4. aums- E, GrRoves .. .,Tenor.
Conddcted by JaMEs E. Groves.

*First peal of Cambridge.

. Tenor, |

EAST MOLESEY. SURREY,
THE SURREY ASSOCIATION.
On Satwyday, ¥uly 20, 1912, in Three Hours and Five Minutes,
AT THR CHURCH OF ST. MARY,
A PEAL OF BOB MA]JOR, 5072 CHANGES;
TROLLOPE'S ONE-PagrT. Tenor 104 cwi.

GRORGE SPENCER o+ «.Trrble. | FerEis ]J. SHEPHERD ., §
ARTHUR F, SHERPEEED .. 2. Avrrep H. WiINCH .o .. 6.
FrpDE G. WooDISS.. .. 3. James N. FRossELL.. «. 7.
Joan H. B. HESSE .. .. 4, Joan Howes .. .. ..Tewar,
Conducted by Joax Howks.
First peal of Major on the bells, This composition is now rung for
the first time. For calling see C.C. Collection of peals, No. 180.
The band wish to thank the Vicar, the Rev. E, G, Ireland, for the
use of thebells; also Mr. F. Baown for having everything in readinees,

MANCHESTER —THE LANCASHIRE ASSOCIATION.
On Satwrday, [uly 20, 1913, in Two Howrs and Fifty-foxr Minutes,
Ar Caeist CauRcH, WrST DIDSBURY,

A PEAL OF STEDMAN TRIPLES, s040 CHANGES.
Tenor 183 cwt.

Harry WILSON®.. . s ..Trcble. | ROBERT DaAVIES.. .. .. 5.
WaLTBR BrOWN.., .. .. 2. P.C. FrepERicK Page .. 6.
GERORGE WABBURTOM .. 3. Joax PoTzER .. 0 .. 7.
WiLreep J. Moss .. .. 4. P.C. Ricaarp NEwTON ..Tenor,
Composed by ], W. Wasasroog, and Conducted by |. PoTTER.
Rung to commemorate the 3oth anniversary of the church; alsoa
birthday complimert to R. Davies, the condactor of the above tower,
and in- honour of P.C. Rd. Newton being on® of 50 members of the
Manchester City Police awarded the King’s medal for long service
and good conduct.

SONNING, BERKS.—THE OXFORD DIOCESAN GUILD, .
(SonN1NG DeaNERY BRANCB.)
Os Saturday, July 20, 1912, i Three Hovirs and Fifteen Minuies,
_ Ar TBE CHURCH OF ST, ANDREW,
A PEAL OF STEDMAN TRIPLES, 5040 CHANGES;
_ TaursTAN's FOUR-PART, - Tenor 22 cwt, in D.

SYONEY FRANKLIN * .. ,.Treble. ] WiLIAM J. Parck .. .. 5.
Josgpr WHITE .. .. .. 2, Joan WapaaMs.. .. .« 6.

ArTHUR W, PiIxg .. .. 3. Rigv, CYRIL JENKYN o7
Amprose W. OsBORNE .. 4. Avserr E. REEVES.. ..Temor.
-Conducted by the’'Rev. CYRIL JERE¥N. :
The first peal on the bells since their restoration. The treble, znd,
and 3rd have been recast, tbe whole peal tuned and hung in a new
steel frame, The work has been excellently carried out by Messrs.,
Taylor, of Loughborough.

ROWLEY REGIS, STAFFORDSHIRE,
WORCESTERQHIRE AND DISTRICTS ASSOCIATION.
(NorTHERN BRANCH.)

On Saturday, Fuly 20, 1913, in Two Hours and Fifty-five Minuics,

At TBE CBURCH OF §r. GILES,
A PEAL OF GRANDSIRE TRIPLES, soqo CHANGES ;
GROVEs'S VAKIATION o Parkica's TwiLve<Paxr. Tenor 12} cwt.

Wu. H. DeTHERIDGR®  ..T7ells. | tHZ0A HOMBE .. .. .. 5.
Ronzgr MATTHEWS .. .. 2.~ | *HoEace DoweLL .. .. 6.
THoMAS CLARKE®-: .. .. 3. J CHamrLEs E. PEREINS .. 7.
GrorGF H. DETHERIDGE® 4. *SAMUEL DxTHEREIDGE ., Temor,

jCondancted by R. MaTTBEWS,

*First peal. {First peal.in the method. This is the peal proposed
at the Rowley meeting of ‘tbe above Association, and wae rang asa
birthday complitent to Mr. F. Willetts; one of ‘the local band.

Ponsoney, AuckLaNDp.(New Zealand).—For evening ée:vice
at the parish church, on June 16th, 720 Bob Minor, in 26 mine,
]. Heather, A. J. White, O. Throssell, P. Guppy, E. Hamblﬁn,

C. Hamblin (conductor). =

Feaerin
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BUSHEY, HERTS.
THE HERTFORDSHIRE ASSOCIATION.
On Monday, Jsly 22, 1912, in Two Hoxrs and Forty-tight Minuies,
At THE CHURCE OF ST, JAMSS,
A PEAL OF STEDMAN TRIPLES, 5040 CHANGES;
THURSTANS'S FOUR-PART. Tenor 18 cwt,

osxPE J. ALLXN .. ..Treble. | BERTBAM PRBWBTT .. .. 3.
goMas R, Scorr .. .. 2. Faeperick EpwaRps .. 6.

TrsMas L. SiMMONS.., .. 3. Maurice F, R, HiggBRT.. 7.

Francis A, Smits .. .. 4. *FrRDE, G. GEORGE .. ..Tenor.

Conducted by Maurice F. R. HiBBRRT.
*Firot peal and first attempt.

DEANE, BOLTON,
THE LANCASHIRE ASSOCIATION.
On Monday, July 22, 1912, in Two Howrs and Forty-cight Minutes,
AT Tag CaurcH or Sr. MaARY,
A PEAL OF STEDMAN TRIPLES, 5040 CHANGES.
Tenor 14 cwt

Titus Bartow .. .. ..Treble.] GroxGE PINCOIZ .. .. 5.
FRED ABBOTT .. +¢ s 2. }osna Ripyarp .. .. 6.
THOMAS WOBSLBRY® .. .. 3. OHN POTTER os o0 oo 7.
Joun WRLSBRY .. 0 0 4. RoOBERT ALLRED.. . ..Tenor.

Composed by J. W. Wasusasoox, and
Conducted by Joux PorTsR,

*First peal in the method,

OLDBURY, STAFFORDSHIRE.,
SOCIETY FOR THE ARCHDEACONRY OF STAFFORD.
On Monday, ¥uly 22, 1912, in Two Hours avd Fifty Minutes,
ATt CHrist CHURCH,

A PEAL OP STEDMAN TRIPLES, 5040 CHANGES ;
THURSTANS'S FPUR-PART, Tenor 10} cwt. -

Jaups H. Sasparp  ..Treble. | JBSSE SCREEN .. .. .. 5.
TaoMas HuGRES .. .. 2. WirriaM D, JaMes .. .. 6.
Taomas HORTON .. .. 3. ReUBER HALL «o oo oo 7.
Jauns E, GrovEs .. .. 4. TeoMAs FIELDHODSE  ..T'¢nor.

Conducted by W, D, Jauss,
Thls is the conductor’s fiftfetb peal,

SELLY OAK, WORCESTERSHIRE.

WORCESTERSHIRE AND DISTRICTS ASSOCIATION.
(NORTRERN BRaNCH.)

On Monday, July 22, 1912, in Two Hours and Fifty Minutss,
AT THE CaurcH orF St Mary,
A PEAL OF STEDMAN TRIPLRES, 5040 CHANGES ;
Teurszans's Four-PagT. Tenor 12 cwt. 1 qr, 13 lh, in F sharp,

GeorGE HirceMAN .. .. Trebls.| ReEv, E, V. Cox s ¢ 5.
HarorD PRAZT .. .. .. 2. SAMUEL GROVE a0 o6 o5
WitLiam H, GopbEn .. 3. }ouu PINFOLD, JUN.ce +¢ 7.

Ccnducted by SaMuBL GROVE.

Handbell Peals.

NEW CROSS, LONDON, S.E.
THE KENT COUNTY ASSOCIATION.
On Thursday, Fuly 18, 1912, in Thres Howurs,
At 3, Margaret Terrace, Harts Lane, -
A PEAL OF BOE ROYAL, 5040 CHANGES.

Miss ELSIE BENNRIT .0 1-2. FRANE BENNBTT .. o. 35-6.
WILLIAM SBEPEERD .. 3-4. Frank I, Hars .. . 7-8.
ALFRED W, GRIMES «s ¢4 oo oo G-I0,
Composed by H. ]J. Tucker, and
Condncted by ALrrED W, GRIMES.

Uwmpire—Mr. J. F. Davis. :

oBN EATON e os  eeTenmor.

GRANTHAM,. LINCOLNSHIRE.
THE LINCOLN DIOCESAN GUILD.,
(SouraraN Braxch.)
Os Saturday, Fuly 20, 1912, in Two Howurs and Thirty-thres Minwics,
At the Foresters Hall, George Street, :
A PEAL OF GRANDSIRE TRIPLES, 5040 CHANGES ;
Hort's Six-ParT,

Haray THORPET o .. I-2. 1S1DNEY PROCTOR .o o+ 5-G.
WirLian G, THowPE t .. 3-4. J. Franx ProcToR .. 7-8.
Conducted by SipNEY ProcTOB
Umpires—S. E. Mears, A. Taylor, and W, H. Proctor, *First
peal on handbells {First peal of Triples in hand. First psal of
Triples in hand in the county by a local band. Rung-as a birthday
compliment to Messrs. A, C. Darnell and H. Thorpe.

BURY ST. EDMUNDS, SUFFOLK.
. THE ELY DIOCESAN ASSOCIATION.
(TaE ST James's SocieTy, Bugy ST. EDMUNDS.)
On Sunday, Fuly 21, 1912, is Two Hoxrs and Twenty-one Minxies,
At the Residence of Mr. Robert Moore, Cemetery Road,
A PEAL OF TREBLE BOB MAJOR, 5088 CHANGES;
IN THE KBNT VaBIATION,

ARTHUR MCORE .. ., I-2. {T. H. BeaNagp .. .. §-6.
Haney A, TURNER .. 3-4. Frank J. LEeviTT .. .. 7-8.

Composed by N. ]J. Pr1srow, and Conducted by A. E. Moogr,

- Umpire—A. Ely. {First peal of Treble Bob in band.. This peal
was arranged for Mr. T. H, Bernard. of Harwich, who was elected a
member of the above previous to starting for the peal, '

*IWiscellaneons,

THE MIDLAND COUNTIES ASSOCIATION,

BirMiNGHAM.—On Snnday, July 20th, for evening service at
Bishop Ryder’s church, on the occasion of the visit of the Lord
Bishop, a quarter-peal of Bob Major. in 51 mins. S. Coley, A,
T. Scrivens, J. Porter, ]J. T. Perry, G. A. Taylor, W. H, Carrod,
W. Ellis, J. B. Collett (first quarter-peal as conductor),

THE OXFORD DIOCESAN GUILD.

Hicn WycoMsE (Backs).—On Sunday, July 7th, for evening
service, 1008 Stedman Triples. S. Goodchild, R. Coles, A,
Ashman, ]J. Gransbary, M. Phipps, B. Page, j. W. Wilkins (con.
ductor), R. Hoing. On the occasion of the marriage: of Miss
H. M. Peachell nond Mr, H. Lowndes, which was celebrated on
Thursday, July 18th, 840 Stedman Triples. W. Phipps, ‘S.
Goodchild, E. Markham, J. Gransbury, R. Coles, B. Page, J. W,
Wilkins (conductor), R. Hoing. Both bride and .hridegroom
are prominently connected with the church and town.

THE LANCASHIRE ASSOCIATION.

OLpHAM,—On Saturday, July 13th, at St. Mary’s church, a
qua-ter-peal of Grandsire Triples (taken from Holi's Original),
in 53 mins., H.Wright, ]J.. Priestly, M, Newton, A, Waites, S.
Stott (conductor), H. E. Fielding, S. M. Buttoworth, I, Scho-
field. Rung on the occasion of the induction of the new Vicar,

HorwicH (Lancashire).—On Juiy 14th, at the parish church,
when the ‘* Anne’s Sermons ”’ were preached, 1080 Plain Bob,

the ringers standing as follows: F. Abbott, J. T. Ailred, T.
Worsley, H. Alired, T. Barlow, R. Allred (conductor).

TyLpESLEY (Lancashire).—On Tuesday, July 16th, for prac.
tice, six membors rang 720 Plain Bob, dfter meeting short for

| Major. H. Watts B. Alired (first 720), W. Hindley, H: Allred,

Herbert Allred (conductor), R. Alired, On Sunday, July a21st,
for Divine Service mn the morning, 896 Boh Major was rung .in
32 mins., by the following members of the local band, viz: H.
Watts, J. Allred, J. T. Allred, H. Worthington, W. Hindley, H.
Allred (conductor), Harry Allred, R. Allred. o

ANTED.—Clean copy of “CHURCH BELLS oF CORNWALL,"
by E. H. Dunkin; published at.34)) in 1878.—Rev. W,
Pearson, Henley Vicarage, Ipswich,
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THE WINCHESTER DIOCESAN GUILD.
GuILDFORD DISTRICT.

A meeting of the Guildford District of the Winchester
Diocesan Guild was held at Cobham on Saturday, July
2oth, and was attended by members from Clandon,
Woking, Guildford, Shalford and Ewhurst. Service was
conducted by the Vicar (Canon Grane) who gave a most
interesting account of the bells and their uses in various
parts of the world from the earliest times, and drew some
very practical inferences for the edification of his hearers.
The Rev. A. E. Cartwright presided at the tea, held at
The Running Mare hotel, and in opening the meeting
said he was glad to renew his acquaintance with the
visiting members, to whom he extended a hearty welcome.
Five new members were elected. It was decided to hold
a combined practice at Woking in the course of the next
month. . The Secretary announced that Mr. Willshire,
who was to have read a paper on “ A Motor Char-a-Banc
Journey to Winchester,” was unable to be present owing
to the serious illness of his wife, but Mr. Whittington had
kindly oftered to give them a short account of a fortnight’s
tandem tour. Mr. Whittington then gave a very interest-
ing summary of a trip extending to about 600 miles among
the churches of Sussex, Kent, Essex, Norfolk, Beds., etc.,
and the hearty reception he and Mrs, Whittington every-
where recelved.

A visit was then paid to the beautiful Vicarage gardens,
which was greatly enjoyed. A course of Grandsire
Triples on the handbells was rung on the lawn as a slight
appreciation of the welcome extended to the members by
Canon and Mrs. Grane.

G orveespondence,
To the Editor.

THE PRESENTATION TO THE
REV R. H. HART-DAVIS.

DEear Sir,~Will you allow me through your columns to
convey my thanks to those members of the Oxford Diocesan
Guild of Church Bell Ringers who were kind enough to
combine together to make me a presentation in the Hall
of Christ Ciurch, Oxford, on the occasion of the Festival,
It has been, and is, a great pleasure to serve the Guild,
and I am very grateful for this expression of goodwill and
regard.

Yours, &c.,
R. H. HART-DAVIS,

The Ridge Field,

Caversham, Reading,
July 218t, 1912.

CAMBRIDGE SURPRISE MA]JOR.

Sir,—The foot-note to the peal of Cambridge Surprise
Major, rung on July 13th at Erdington, Warwickshire,
stating the composition to be the first ever rung, other than
C. Middleton’s is not correct, as I composed and conducted
the first 5024 of Cambridge Major at St. Stephen’s, West-
minster, on August 24th, 1go1. This was the foundation
of the 12896 in the same method.

Yours, &c.,

io, Peak Hlll Gardens,
Sydenham, S.E.,
July 23td, 1912,

F. DENCH.

THE LADIES’ PEAL.
Jury 2oth, 1912,

Last Suturday a bevy of young ladies, captained by
Miss E. K. Parker, gathered at Christ Church, Cubitt
Town, and raug a peal of Grandsire Triples, 5040 changes.
This the first peal to be rung by a band of ladies, has
moved a correspondent to poetry.

Like a breath of Summer laden, hke a cheery ray of Hope,
Is the sight of gentle maiden deftly bandling of a rope;
Welcome girlhood to our Science, snnshine o'er our pathway
cross, '
You can win, by the alliance, all the silver from our dross.
e * *

You have heard of Boadicea, you have read of Joau of Arc,

You have known both Sage and Seer who have tried to make
their mark ;

Bat I sing the Art of Ringing to my barp, ah! hand it down,

Trlbute paid is to the ladies for their peal at Cubitt Town.

Years ago the bells of Britain called for men of muscle strong, ' :

Hangindg? vile made many a * Titan " toil through weary peal
and long;

Bat at length there came a guetdon, Engineering Science led,

From our shoulders dropped the burden—Woman took it up

instead.
One by one their ranks grew stronger, and perchance the thought -
would steal o
O'er theirlminds. that, ere much longer, one day they would ring R N
a peal ; ,

Aye, would ring it all together as their brother-ringers stood, =
Shew the world outside them whether theirs was test of -
womanhood. -

And at last that day had broken, now ha‘d come the fateful hour !

Eight youug women by a token, climbed within the belfry tower ;

Bared ﬁvere arms and bared to shoulder ready for the Captain's
calil, :

Hoping as the day grew older for the welcome * This is all,”

Sarah Pigott took the treble, representing Worcester's Guild ;

Eva Belcher on the 2nd, bonnie girl -of sturdy build ;

Lilian Willson came from Leicester; rang tge 3rd and struck it
true;

Mary Jukes—a true * Sou'-Wester"’—rang as good Bristolians do.

Next stood Portishead’s fair daughter, Nellie Gillingham her
name ~

Rwe?t bell musi¢ sought and caught her and it brought her into
ame ; :

From the place where once the author of * Pilgrim’s Progress"
scorned a peal, o

Came to ring the 6th in bohour—Bedford's delegate—Eva Steel,

Edith Parker, aye, * The Peerless,” at the 7th she took her stand,
History will tell how fearless a conductress led the band
Through the ripples of their Tﬁrlet.on its' consummation bent,
With Clara Beasley ringing easily at the tenor, on they went.

Everyone now knows the story, how through three losg hours
or more :

They had rung till theirs the glory as they left the belfry floor,

Tell it out and tell it ever how the ladies brought renown

To our Art by their endeavours in the peal at Cubitt Towa.

* * +*
Like a breath of Summer laden, like a c.tieery ray of Hope,

Is the sight of gentle maider deftly bandling of a rope ;
Welcome Girlhood to our Science, sunshine sweet our pathway

cross, . .
You may win by the alliance, all the silver from the dross.

lwl
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BOB MAJOR. 5152,
Sir,—In my hurry last week I sent you the wrong By the same Author.
figures. Iam very sorry indeed, and I ‘would be very 23456 M W H
glad if you would allow me to set this matter right. These -
are the right figures, and should read 5184, not 5024. 42356 -
Yours etc., 34256 -
79, Abbey Street, Birmingham, E. MULLINS. 25346 _
2546 -
e 35246 -
23456 W 54 H 24536 -
o 52436 -
42356 - 45236 -
26354 - x - 63254 - -
32654 = 26354 -
63254 - 32654 -
25634 - - 65324 . -
62534 - 36524 -
56234 - 53624 -
23564 - - 46325 - -
52364 - 34625 -
24365 - x - 63425 -
32465 = 54326 - -
43265 - 35426 -
26435 - 43526 -
42635 - 25634 -
64235 - 65432 -
23645 - - . 23456 - -
gziig _ X - 6th extent at home. _ July, 1911,
32546 -
53246 - CAMBRIDGE SURPRISE MAXIMUS.
24532 - - 5280
22236 - By F. DexncH, College Youth.
32456 - $ 23456 M w H
Repeated once. —
P 64352 - -
5 88 . SUPERLATIVE SURPRISE. 56342
= 24365 -
. By C. ]. SepGLEY, Ipswich. 32465 -
- 23459 B M W H 43265 -
45236 - - 62534 -
24536 - 35426 -~
52436 . - 42356 -
S . 63425 - - - 34256 -
: - 46325 - 23456 -
34625 -
23645 - 5024 DOUBLE NORWICH MAJOR.
46532 -7 By Geo. Cross.
125634 - -
© 25346 x = 23456 1 4 5 6
32546 - —
54326 - - - 53624 - -
35426 - 26354 1
43526 - 63254 -
65324 64235 -
36524 . 42635 s
53624 - 23645 - *
53246 X - 46325 -~ -
64235 - - - 63425 -
26435 ~ 24365 - -
42635 - 43265 - , :
42356 x - 32465 L
34256 - Repeat three times. Single for last bob at 1 in second
23456 - and fourth parts.

Has 6th extent at hone, May, 1911,

1 any part,

Add three bobs at G where'marked * i




L
[RREh

0
oA

292 THE BELL NEWS AND RINGERS‘ RECORD,

]uij 27, 1912

The Bishop of Salisbury dedicated the
new church of St. Mary, West Fording-
ton,a growing suburb of Dorchester, Dor-
set, which has been erected at a cost of
£11,500., The Bishop wore a cope and
mitre richly embroidered in cloth of gold,
and the Vicar, the Rev. J. M. Collard, cele-
brated with full Eucharistic vestments.
Incense was used during the procession.
At the lunch which followed the Bishop
said he doubted if it would be possible in
hia lifetime to divide the diocese of Salis-
bury and revive the ancient bishopric of
Dorsetshire,

Six beautiful stall canopies were dedi-
cated in the choir of Truro Cathedral, in
memory of Archbishop Benson, Bisbop
Wilkinson, and Archdeacon Bourke, who
had formerly been Sub-dean and Rector of
Truro. Chancellor Worlledge and Sub-
Dean Hassard took the principal part in
the dedication ceremony, and the Bisbop

of St. Germauns, in an address, alluded to
the *three men through whom God had
guided them. First, there was a tender,
wise, and strong giant, guiding as God, not
with bit and bridle, but with his eye.”
Cornwall’'s second Bishop was * the true
man of devotion and prayer, intellect and
knowledge, with his wise and wonderful
personal influence.” To enrich and mul-
tiply what they had done came a man
“ who manifested in a special and peculiar
way the real meaning of spiritual force.”
The annual meeting also took place on
Monday of the Truro Cathedral Fund, at
which it was proposed that a statue of the
late Bishop Stubbs should be erected. A
medallion of the late Mr. Carlyon, one of
the generous benefactors of the Cathedral,
is to be placed within it.

The Bishop of Crediton dedicated the
new church of St. Paul, Yelverton, a Dart-
mouth health resort in the moorland parish

JOHN TAYLOR & CO.,
Bell Founders & Pell Hangers,

LOUGHBOROUGH, Leicestershire.

FOUNDERS of the Ring of Bells for ST. PAUL'S CATHEDRAL
the Heaviest Peal of 12 Ringing Bells in the World

 This is unquestionably the grandest ringing peal in England, and therefore in
the world.” The late Lord Grimthorpe, K.C.—Times, Nov. 20, 1878,

FOUNDERS OF

“GREAT PAUL”

The Tonor 841i, 8t. P atrick's Cathedral, Dublin.

Also Fonnders of the peals of Bells at the Cathedrals ot Worcester, Newcastle
on-Tyne, Edinborgh (St. Mary's), Dublin (St. Patrick's), Christ Cborch, N.Z,

Singapore.

Also “ Great iohn" and the ring of Ten at Beverley Minster ; and the ring of

Ten a$ the Imperial Institnte,

Also the bells of Dundalk r.c: Cathedral, and ** Great Bede " ot Downside Ahbey,
Algo for-the town hulls of ‘Manchester, Preston, Bradford, Halifax, Rochdale,

Post Offices in Australia,

. Wakefleld, Middlesbrongh, Kendal, and Londonderry; and the Sydney and Adelaide

Alss th: chime sf bells at Ames College, Iowa, U.S.A}
An] theirocest " Gsandison,"” of Ezster Cathades)

of Buckland Monachorm, which derives
its name from the historic Abbey of Buck-
land. The church, which has cbancel,
nave, north and south aisles, and a tower
65 feet in height, is built of local stone,
and has been designed by Sir Charles
Nicholson, The preacher at Evensong
was the Rev. G, S. Thorpe, formerly
priest-in.charge of Yelverton, and since
1901 Rector of the extensive Dartmoor
parish of Lydford, which contains 56,000
acres, and has three distant chapels-of-
ease,

The Archbishop of Canterbury, in his
sermon at the re-opening of Winchester
Cathedral, foretold that, in daysto come,
when men are talking of Walkelyn and
de Lucy, and Wykebam and Fox, there
will be more to add:—*The names of
Ryle and Furneaux, with the trio of re.
doubtable men—the great architect,
Thomas Graham Jackson ; the resouceful
engineer, Grandis Fox; and—for it mnst
be added—the working diver, William
Robert Walker, will hold place for good
in the annals of our century’s beginning.”

The financial result of the recent Mis-

sionary Exhibition at the Church House, 1

Westminster, is a net profit of £800, which
will be handed over to S.P.G. Meetings
in continuation of the Exhibition will be
heid at the Church House, Westminster,
on October 31.

J. HINTON MEMORIAL FUND.

The following contribntions have been }
received for the above fund :— ‘ o |
: 8. d. j

Rev. Tilney Bassett
Mr. C. E. D. Boutflower
Mr. W, A, Cave .
Rev. C, D, P, Davies ...
Mr. W, W, Gifford
Per Mr. ]J. Holman ...
Mr. G. Iles
Mr. T. King ...
Mr. J. D, Matthews ...
Per Mr. H. Middleton
Mr. F. Price ... s
Mr. J. H. Shepherd ... .
Mr. A. Thomas oo
Mrs, Walker ...
Birmingham :—
Messrs. J. Bradley, J. Carter,
- W. H. Godden, J. E. Groves
and J. Jones ...
St. Nicolas' Guild, Bristol .
St. Stephen’s Guild, Bristol ...
St. Stephen’s Vestry, Bristol ...
Bridgend Ringers ...
Cardiff (St. John's) ...
St. Michael's Juniors, Glos. ...
Liandaff Cathedral
Minehead :— :
Messrs. J. R. Jones and J.
Passmore .
Newport (All Saints) ...
Painswick Youths
Worcester Cathedral ...

Total . £9 9 0 %

Funds are still needed to complete the :
Memorial, and further contribntions wonld
be gratefully received by the Tredsnrer, 1
Mr. C. E, D. Boutflower, 30, Broad Street, }
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CHURCH " ITEMS.

« Ealing really ought to have a Bishop all to itself,” the
Bishop of Kensington declares.

Acting upon medical advice, the Bishop of Norwich is
leaving his diocese for a change of air.

The Bishop of Winchester gave an address at an open-
air service in a street at Farnham on Sunday night.

A new parish hall has been erected at Groombridge,
near Tunbridge Wells, as a memorial to King Edward VII.

At Finedon, Northamptonshire, the foundations of the
parish church have been weakened by the roots of two
large yew trees. :

The Rev. J. B, Parker, curate of All Hallows Church,
Lombard Street, has been appointed to the living of St.
Jude’s, Whitechapel.

The King has approved the appointment of the Rev.
Francis Rosslyn Courtney Bruce, D.D. to the living of St.
Augustine's, Edgbaston.

The Bishop of Winchester has appointed the Rev. E.C.
Kirwan, rector of Holy Trinity and St. Mary, Guildford,
to be Rural Dean of Guildford.

* Owing to rohperies at St Cyprian’s, Brockley, a band of
voluntary watchers now take turns on duty, to enable the
church to be kept open until evensong.

At a diocesan conference of lay readers at St. Asaph,
arrangements were made for readers to attend a special
training course at Keble College, Oxford.

Canon Beaumont, who has just retired from the vicariate
of Holy Trinity, Coventry, after 40 years’ service, has
been presented with a cheque for £330.

The Bishop of St. David's has appointed his eidest son,
Mzr. Griffith E. Owen, B.A,, to the registrar of the diocese
of St. David’s, in succession to the late Mr. T. W. Barker.

The Archb shop of Canterbury has unveiled the window
erected in the church a* Eastchurch, Isle of Sheppey, in
memory of the late Hon. C, S. Rolls and Mr. Cecil S.
Grace.

A beautiful stained-glass window has been placed in the
chancel of Finedon, Northants parish church, in memory
of the late Canon Paul, who was for. 63 ycars vicar of
I"inedon.

A series of Sunday open-air services is being con-
ducted on Ealing Common by the various Ealing churches,
under the auspices of the Bishop of London’s Evangelistic
Council.

Mrs. Richard Foster, of Holmwood, Chislehurst, has
sent £100 to the rector of West Hackney (Rev. A. M.
Batty) for the Restoration Fund. Over £1100 has been
raised towards the £1500 required.

The Rev. Sidney Bott, M.A., bas been presented by
his parishioners with a purse containing /50, in recogni-
tion of his services for 35 years as vicar of St. Jude’s
Church, Kensal Rise, Paddington.

+ St. James’s Church, Hatcham; is to be beautified by, the
addition of a mosaic, depicting the Lord’s Supper, iﬁd a
bronze tablet to the reredos as a memorial to the late Rev.
James Arthur Sowter, vicar of theparish from 1301 to
eps % 5

A faculty has been granted authorising the erection in
Dacre Church, Cumberland, of memorials to the Rev. Dr,
John Troutbeck, Precentor of Westminster Abbey, who
died in 1899, and his son, Mr.'John Troutbeck,late coroner
for South-West London, who died in February.

After having been vicar of Harrow Weald for 33 years,
the Rev. W. H. Peers has resigned, owing to the illness of
his wife. Mr. Peers 30 years ago became chairman of the
Harrow School Board, and is to-day chairman of its suc-
cessor, the Harrow School District Managers.

Lady Pelly, step-daughter of the late Sir Rutherford
Alcock, and widow of the late Lt.-General Sir Lewis Pelly,
will present the prizes to successful plot-holders, at the
Church Army’s *“City” Garden, in Elverton Street,
Horseferry Road, S.W., on Saturday afternoon.

The bells at Lavenham, Suffolk, have been dedicated by
Bishop Harrison. The peal is a noted one, containing a
magnificent tenor, considered by all experts to be the
masterpiece of Miles Grave, It weighs 23 cwt., and is 52
inches across the mouth, a remarkable feature being its
thinness. The ringers celebrate its birthday each June 21.

The Secretary of the Royal Naval Ports Church Build-
ing Fund, Church House, Westminster, has received £250
from Mrs. Elizabeth Crossley, £250 from Mr. Harry
Lloyd, £ 100 from Miss Stancomb-Wills, £100 from Mrs.
William Milburn, £50 from Mr. F. W. Harris, and £50
from « H. K.” in response to the appeal of the Bishops of
Winchester, Exeter, Rochester, aud Southampton for help
to build churches for the men who build and man the ships
of the Royal Navy.

The dedication in ancient times of a number of churches
in the country round London, in honour of St. Mary,
necessitated the addition in each case of a distinguishing
suffix—as St. Mary at Iselton or Islington; St. Mary,
Whitechapel,; St. Mary, Newington ; St. Mary-le-Bourne,
on the Tyburn Stream; and St. Mary Abotts, Kensington.
Probably many people,.if asked the meaning of the pecyliar
name given to the parish church of Kensington—St. Ma
Abbotts—would connect it with-the Abbey of Westminster,
whose landed property extended very far west and north.
But, according to Lyson’s ‘¢ Environs,” ‘‘the Manor of
Abbot’s, Kensington, was gtanted about the year 1100, by
Godfrey de Vere, to the Abbot and Conveat of Abingdon.”
Newcourt, in his ¢ Repertorium,” explains that ** Faricius,
then Abbot of Abingdon, had cured Godirey de Vere of a
former sickness.”

An interesting, 'if wholly subordinate, incident in the
Winchester ceremony was the presencs of four soldiers
among the stewards—two corporals-of-horse representing
the Blues, and a sergeant and a private of the Coldstieam
Guards. In the history of these regiments is to be found
the reason why they weére so répresented on this occasion.
The Biues, though embodied in 1661, were the lineal suc-
cessors of a Roundhead regiment of hors: ; while the Cold-
stream Guards have maintained an unbroken existence
from their first raising under Cromwell. It was thought
not unfitting that the modern representatives of the Parlia-
mentary forces who in an evil time grossly desecrated the °
cathedral, should join'in celebrating the entry of the great
church on a new chapter in its history, The Coldstream
sergeant remarked to one of the ' Winchester scholass} 4 We
have come to make an act of reparation ””; to which the
lad replied, ¢ Ob, how jolly!”

“ Tue BeLL NEws,” post free, 1s, 8d. per quarter, or
63, 6d. per year i . o
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HANDBELL
- MUSIC.

T'he following pisces are arranged as per list 4
ia W. G's Catalogue, viz., fonr ootaves io
the chromatic scale G, 25 to G 04. 8 ringers,

No. 3. Selection ¥ Don Giovanni".. 3s.0d.

No, 31. Bine Bells of Scotland (3 varia-
- tions) «e X .o .o .

No. 39. )(?-rand Selection *“ Der Fries-

chotz " oo .. .o es

No. 136. The Bluoe Danube Walts .. 3s.6d.

No. 163. Chorus from Martha,, os 28, 64.
Also the following can be had arraoged as

above, or for larger peals and No, of ringers :

terms on application. Andante, Haydn's Sor~
prise Sympbony, Last Rose of Saommer (three
variations and finale), Old Folks at Home,
variations and finale, Vesper Hymn, variations
and finale, Woodstock March,

The following are for 6 ringers, 12 bells,

thos— .

No. 261. The Swiss Toy Girl s I8 6d.

No. 262. Lammas Day (Welsh Air).. 1s.0d.

No. 263, Captain Morgan's March .. 1s.0d.

No, 264. Norah, the Pride of Kildare

angd the Hal:l D?“"W s 18, 6d.

No. . The Angel's isper an
tsl?egllaid of ngngollen s?. .o 18, 6d.
No. 320. The Mountaineers' Waltz., 1s.6d,
No. 321. The Rosa of Allandale March 1s. 6d.
18. 6d.
18. 6d,
18, 6d.

2s. od.
48, od,

No. 322. The Pilgrim of Love Galop

No. 382 O come El? ye faithful, and
Lol He comes .. . .o

No. 308 Italian and German Airs

(lively) X3 .o .o .o
No. 114 In my cottage near a wood,

T wvari ) .o e .o 18. od.
OVER 300 PIECES IN STOCK.
SEND STAMP FOR CATALOGUE.
WILLIAM GORDON,

44, Celtic Street, Webb Lane,
Stockport.

Harry Stokes & Son,

CHURGH BELL HANGERS,

WOODBURY (R.5.0.), DEVON,

-Harry Stoxes & Son having bad a
considerable number of. years' experience
in Charch Bell Hanging, with confidence
solicits the patronage of the Clergy,
Chnrchwardens, and Ringers generally.
The Ellacombe Chiming Hammers fixed,

BELL-ROPES. BELL-ROPES.

Before sending for Bell-ropes, write to

DAY & CO.,,
OHURGH BELL-ROPE MAKERS,

11. MARKET STREET. OXFORD,
-Wheo manufacinys Bell-Ropss of the very best

GOLD MEDAL. EXHIBITION 1851

' The late Rev. H. 'f. ELLacoMPR, in writing
to a dist;x:ﬁnished tringer, said—* The best
maker of bell-ropes is Day, of Oxford.”

- MEARS & STAINBANK,
WHITECHAPEL BELL FOUNDRY,

BELFRIES AND CLOCK TOWERS INS?ICTID.

@hnrch ﬁ 2115 ERECTED !SOMPLETE
IRON, STEEL, OR OAK FRAMES.
Old Bells Tuned or Re-cast. Peals re-fitted and Rehung.

80HOOL BELLS, MUSICAL HAND-BELLS.

FOUNDRY — ESTABLISHED A.D. 1870.—
82, & 84, WHITECHAFEL ROAD, LONDON, E,

JAS. BARWELIL,

Bell Foundenr,
40, Gt. Hampton 8t,, Birmingham.

CHURCH BELLS, with all requisite Fittings and Framewark
singly or in Peals, CLOCK and CHIME BELLS to any size

and note.

" SCHOOL ?ELLS. with ringing arrangementssuitable for any
position. .

Existing Peals economically and efficiently restored.

CRACKED BELLS recast, and ANCIENT INSCRIPTIONS
reproduced in fac-simile when required.

={ Men who are ringers sent to inspect Towers and report upon

! the tune and conditipn of Bells and Fittings,

MUSICAL HANDBELLS tuned in Diatonic and Chromatic
Scales in sets of any numbers.

H M. ROYAL ORDNANCE
STORES, FOR BELLS

 CHARLES GARR,

BELL FOUNDERS,
SMETHWICK, BIRMINGHAH

PATENTEES AND
CONTRACTORS TO

Gold Mesallists and
Founders oy Maiden
- Peals,

Recasting, Rehanging, Repairs
' All kinds of Work Undertaken,

. .Send: for Catalogue and TESTIMONIALS Post Free.

'ﬁPti’nt'ed by the Proprietor, at his Offices in Selborne Road, Walthamstow, and Published by Simemw

¢ Mapsuary, HaLzon, Kpny

ap Co,, L7D,, Paternoster Row, London, E.C, .




